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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The High Bridge Reformed Church complex consists of the main 
Carpenter Gothic Church, the attached chapel and the parsonage in the 
rear.

The High Bridge Reformed Church is a one story rectangular board 
and batten structure with side tower. The building measures 41.6 feet 
by 68 feet and is 71 feet high at the peak of the steep pitched gable 
roof. The tower with spire reaches to 83 feet. The tower has a 
belfry and copper sheathed short steeple (in 1930 a storm destroyed a 
taller steeple). The gable roof has exposed rafters and the slate is 
alternating courses of straight and scalloped shingles. Two-thirds 
the distance up the roof are five triangular dormers piercing the 
severe roof line. These dormers have triangular stained glass windows 
in each.

The front and rear facades of the church have eight foot diameter 
Rose windows. The rear Rose window is in the box-like apse. Beneath 
the east Rose window is the main church entrance. This double door 
entrance is protected by a brief steep pitched overhang with collar 
beam. The side tower has an additional similar entrance vestibule. 
The linear sides have five gothic arch stained glass windows divided 
by five flying buttresses of wood set on cement bases.

The interior of the church is nearly completely original and 
features a simple center aisle and two rows of five wooden benches. 
The most impressive interior feature of the church is the massive open 
arched ceiling with collar beams in a stained wood. There is a small 
balcony in the rear of the church above the main entranceway.

The chapel was attached to the main church in 1905. Measuring 69 
feet by 43 feet, it is of frame construction with shingles and is 
compatible with the design of the main church.

The parsonage was built around 1875 and is in the rear of the 
main church. This is a fine L-form frame dwelling. It is 2 1/2 
stories with a low-pitched gable roof with returns. There is an 
entablature beneath the eaves. The street oriented windows have 
elaborate wood cornices. Other cornices are much simpler. A one 
story porch with round posts and square bases fills in the el of the 
building. A bay window is also on the front. The foundation is 
random fieldstone.

The complex is on a rectangular corner lot 250 feet long by 200 
feet wide, located at Church Street and Fairview Avenue.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecture

The High Bridge Reformed Church, built in 1870, is one of the 
finest examples of Carpenter Gothic style of architecture in New 
Jersey.

There is some indication that noted architect George B. Post 
designed this church. A number of references document this. While 
the original papers pertaining to the construction of the church could 
not be located, church minutes of the dedication of the chapel in 1906 
refer to Post as the architect of the main church. In addition, Helen 
M. Voorhees, daughter of Oscar Voorhees, pastor of the church from 
1901-1905, writes that the architect of the church was George B. Post. 
Furthermore, Lewis H. Taylor, owner of the Taylor Iron and Steel Works 
in the third quarter of the 19th century was a prominent New Jerseyan 
industrialist with intimate New York connections while Post did have a 
summer home in nearby Bernardsville, New Jersey. Unfortunately, 
archival sources have not been located which clearly document this as 
a Post design although Leslie Ike, a Doctoral candidate in Fine Arts 
at Columbia University is preparing her Ph.D. dissertation on the 
career of George Post and is quite certain that this is a Post 
building.

If her research conclusively establishes the High Bridge Reformed 
Church as being one of George Post's, this would be the earliest 
surviving example of his work in the United States.

Religion

Residents of High Bridge petitioned the Classic of Raritan to 
organize the Reformed Dutch Church in 1866. Almost immediately, its 
members created a committee to build the present church. The com­ 
mittee was made up of High Bridge's most prominant residents - Lewis 
H. Taylor, William S. Seals, Joseph Elton, Andrew Cregar, Jr. and 
Johnson Hummer. In its spiritual influence, the High Bridge Church 
had a major impact on the development of the town.
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